Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees San Mateo County Community College District June 25, 2008 San Mateo, CA

The meeting was called to order at 6:06 p.m.

Board Members Present:	President Richard Holober, Vice President-Clerk Karen Schwarz, Trustees Helen Hausman, and Patricia Miljanich, and Student Trustee Virginia Medrano Rosales; Trustee Dave Mandelkern arrived at 7:20 due to a delayed flight
Others Present:	Chancellor Ron Galatolo, Executive Vice Chancellor Jim Keller, Skyline College President Victoria Morrow, College of San Mateo President Michael Claire, Cañada College President Tom Mohr, and District Academic Senate President Patty Dilko

Pledge of Allegiance

DISCUSSION OF THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA None

MINUTES

It was moved by Vice President Schwarz and seconded by Trustee Hausman to approve the minutes of the Study Session of the Board of June 11, 2008. The motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

Pursuant to the item in the minutes reporting approval of the contract for a mobile kitchen at College of San Mateo, President Holober asked if there is a District policy regarding the use of Styrofoam. Executive Vice Chancellor Keller said the District does not use Styrofoam products. Trustee Hausman noted that some cities are considering a ban on using plastic water bottles. Vice President Schwarz said she would like the Board to look into the use of several items that may have an environmental impact. Chancellor Galatolo said staff will make sure this topic will be studied at a future meeting. Chancellor Galatolo said that following press reports of lead in synthetic fields, the District has been assured by the vendor that District fields do not contain lead. Vice Chancellor José Nuñez added that a firm will come in to test the fields for verification.

PRESENTATIONS TO THE BOARD BY PERSONS OR DELEGATIONS None

STATEMENTS FROM EXECUTIVES

Executive Reports were presented by Chancellor Galatolo, Skyline College President Morrow, College of San Mateo President Claire, Cañada College President Mohr, Executive Vice Chancellor Keller and District Academic Senate President Dilko. Copies of the Presidents' Executive Reports were available for distribution at the meeting and are attached to the official minutes of record.

Chancellor Galatolo welcomed Student Trustee Medrano Rosales to her first regular meeting. He also thanked everyone for their support after his mother's death. He said his mother, Winifred Galatolo, was a graduate of College of San Mateo and was very supportive of the District. He asked that tonight's meeting be adjourned in her honor.

President Morrow said she is pleased with the selection of Ms. Medrano Rosales as Student Trustee. She said many of the photos in Skyline publications are the work of Ms. Medrano Rosales. Highlighting her written report, President Morrow said there have been many completion ceremonies and she particularly enjoyed the Butterfly Graduation of the five-year-olds from the Children's Center. President Morrow said that Skyline is pleased to have received a grant for a middle college.

President Claire distributed a compact disc showing the Spotlight high school filmmaking scholarship awards ceremony. He thanked KCSM General Manager Marilyn Lawrence and Professor Michelle Brown for their work on the video competition. President Claire said College of San Mateo is pleased to have been invited to join the Aurora Project and said the College ranks in the top 20% of transfers to UC's in science and math.

President Mohr highlighted items in his written report, including a "Midnight Madness" event to help enroll students who are unable to register for classes in the traditional hours of operation, and the potential partnering of KinderCaminata with Spark, a youth apprenticeship program designed for middle school students. President Mohr also said that Cañada hosted a very well attended and educational Basic Skills Initiative conference on June 9 and 10.

Executive Vice Chancellor Keller said the District is on track for book sales to increase 21% for this month compared with last year, and are up over 10% for the year; this is indicative of increasing enrollment. Executive Vice Chancellor Keller distributed a set of graphs showing Census FTES. Chief Financial Officer Kathy Blackwood said the graphs show continued growth for the current year. A report on the budget and enrollment will be presented later tonight.

District Academic Senate President Dilko said she will present her report under item 08-6-5C.

STATEMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

None

NEW BUSINESS

APPROVAL OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS: CHANGES IN ASSIGNMENT, COMPENSATION, PLACEMENT, LEAVES, STAFF ALLOCATIONS AND CLASSIFICATION OF ACADEMIC AND CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL (08-6-2A)

It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Trustee Miljanich to approve the actions in Board Report No. 08-6-2A. The motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

The Consent Agenda consists of the following Board Reports:

08-6-2CA	Acceptance of Gifts by the District
08-6-3CA	Renewal of Agreements with American Institute for Foreign Study (AIFS), 2008-09
08-6-4CA	Contract Extension for Unit Price Painting, Districtwide
08-6-5CA	Contract Extension for Unit Price Window Treatment, Districtwide
08-6-6CA	Contract Award for Unit Price Acoustic Treatments, Districtwide
08-6-7CA	Approval of Membership in PBS Programs For Pledge (PFP), 2008-09 - KCSM
08-6-8CA	Approval of PBS Membership Dues and Program Service Purchases, 2008-09 - KCSM
08-6-9CA	Approval of Service Agreement with Tele-Direct for Pledge Call Center Services, 2008-09 – KCSM
08-6-10CA	Approval of Service Agreement with Goodman Marketing Partners for Membership Services, 2008-09 – KCSM

- 08-6-11CA Approval of Payment to the South Bay Regional Public Safety Training Consortium for the 2008-09 Peace Officers Training Academy, College of San Mateo
- 08-6-12CA Approval of Budgetary Transfers for the Period Ending May 31, 2008 and Adoption of Resolution No. 08-8 Authorizing Budget Transfers for 2007-08
- 08-6-13CA Adoption of Resolution No. 08-9 Establishing 2008-09 Budget Limits

It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Vice President Schwarz to approve the items on the Consent Agenda. The motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

Other Recommendations

CURRICULAR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS (08-6-2B)

It was moved by Vice President Schwarz and seconded by Trustee Hausman to approve the additions and deletions as described in the report. The motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

AWARD OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT TO RPM CONSULTANT GROUP (08-6-102B)

It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Vice President Schwarz to approve the contract award as described in the report. The motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

RENEWAL OF CONTRACT WITH TOM CASEY (08-6-103B)

It was moved by Vice President Schwarz and seconded by Trustee Hausman to approve the contract renewal as described in the report. The motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

APPROVAL OF 2010-2014 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION PLAN (08-6-104B)

It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Vice President Schwarz to approve the plan as described in the report.

Executive Director of Construction Planning Rick Bennett said the report is a snapshot in time, describing the status of projects campus by campus. He referred the Board to page 9 of the report, which lists projects that have been approved but not funded. Funding for these projects is dependent upon a statewide bond election and the addition of the projects to the State budget. The District has been notified that the Legislature will not include the projects in doubt. Vice Chancellor Nuñez distributed a chart showing the State capital outlay projects which are affected by these decisions, totaling \$53,244,000 in State funding that is no longer available. Therefore, these approved but not funded projects are being put back into the mix to compete with other projects for the limited State resources available for the 2009-2010 cycle. The State's funding priority is for projects concerning safety. The Construction Planning Department and Swinerton Management are working with the Colleges to reprioritize projects. Trustee Miljanich asked if, during the process of reprioritization, projects might be more oriented to safety. Vice Chancellor Nuñez said safety is always paramount in all projects, but actual safety projects are not affected.

Chancellor Galatolo said the District's methodical planning over the years has relied on this State funding along with local resources. He said the District still hopes to get the Cañada fitness center funded by the State. Trustee Miljanich asked if there is a chance for a major donor to provide funding and have his/her name on the fitness center. Chancellor Galatolo said Foundation Executive Director Stephani Scott is always open to such opportunities.

Vice President Schwarz asked for clarification on which projects the Board is being asked to approve in the fiveyear plan. Mr. Bennett said the approval is for projects scheduled for the 2010-2011 cycle and includes four Initial Project Proposals one Final Project Proposal. President Holober asked why the statewide November 2008 ballot measure is not going forward. Chancellor Galatolo said he met with Assemblyman Gene Mullin last week and was told that the Governor will not support the measure and polling indicates that the measure would not pass in the current economy. President Holober asked how large the bond request would have been; Chancellor Galatolo said it likely would have been between \$1 billion and \$2 billion.

President Holober asked about the effect on the District's original plans for use of Measure A funds, in which some projects were fully funded by Measure A dollars and others used a percentage of these funds supplemented by funds the District expected to get from the State. Chancellor Galatolo said the District has been diligent in allocating resources and takes care to spend taxpayer dollars appropriately. Without State funds, not all of the Measure A projects can be completed and the District may have to reprioritize the projects. In addition, some projects will not be as efficient as originally planned. Chancellor Galatolo said the District has always had good community support and the Board might be asked to consider seeking additional local resources. President Holober said a discussion regarding local resources would be appropriate. He asked if the District has the ability to reallocate funding or if it is locked in on a project-by-project basis. Chancellor Galatolo said that by the time of next year's Board Retreat, more information will be available and the District will seek guidance from the Board on whether to defer completion of specific projects, opt not complete them, or consider seeking additional local support through a bond measure.

After this discussion, the motion to approve the five-year capital construction plan passed, all members present voting "Aye."

EXTENSION OF UNIT PRICE CONRACT FOR ASBESTOS ABATEMENT, DISTRICTWIDE (08-6-105B)

It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Vice President Schwarz to approve the contract extension as described in the report. Ulysses Guadamuz, as a member of the public, asked why there are not RFPs for this contract and the other contract extensions being considered tonight. Rick Bennett explained that the original contracts included an option to renew for four additional one-year terms, for a total of five years. After that time, the services will go out to bid for new five-year contracts. The contract for asbestos abatement expires in December 2008. Mr. Guadamuz asked if a process is in place to reevaluate the contracts before the one-year extensions are requested. Linda da Silva, Executive Director of Construction Planning, said the District and its cost consultants are continually monitoring pricing and the District maintains the option of going out to bid. She added that all of the contracts were competitively bid three or four years ago. After this discussion, the motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

EXTENSION OF UNIT PRICE CONTRACT FOR FLOORING, DISTRICTWIDE (08-6-106B)

It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Vice President Schwarz to approve the contract extension as described in the report. The motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

<u>APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE ACCESS CONTROLS AND ALARM MONITORING</u> <u>SYSTEM (ACAMS) ADD-ON PROJECT – DISTRICTWIDE (08-6-107B)</u>

It was moved by Vice President Schwarz and seconded by Trustee Hausman to approve the contract award as described in the report. The motion carried, all members present voting "Aye."

ADOPTION OF THE 2008-09 TENTATIVE BUDGET (08-6-108B)

It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Trustee Miljanich to adopt the tentative budget.

Chief Financial Officer Kathy Blackwood described the budget process. It is the role of the District Committee on Budget & Finance to (1) develop a budget and planning calendar, (2) develop budget assumptions, (3) review the Resource Allocation Model which was developed in 2006-07, and (4) review requests for augmentation.

Budget assumptions include growth for all three Colleges using FTES over the last 10 years; a 1% deficit factor on State-determined revenue; known compensation adjustments; and increases for utilities and benefits.

The Resource Allocation Model allocates for historical imbalances; allocates fixed costs; allocates for projected growth; allocates for compensation changes; and allocates for identified needs. The model then reduces all site allocations to balance the budget, this year in the amount of \$360,596. CFO Blackwood noted that this is not a large figure, given that the budget is over \$114 million.

Other State budget issues include deferred payments. In the proposed State budget, apportionment payments to community colleges would be delayed not only from June 2008 to July 2008, but also from January, February and March 2009 to April, May and June 2009. Part-time faculty funds would be deferred from September 2008 to June 2009. These deferments may require the District to issue additional Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes and will affect interest income and expense. CFO Blackwood said the District can better deal with the deferments than some other districts because of its reserves.

As noted in earlier discussion tonight, CFO Blackwood noted that the cancellation of the facilities bond on the November ballot affects six District building projects for a total of \$53,244,000 in lost State funds.

The proposed State budget also shows cuts to categorical programs, with 4% to 10% cuts to matriculation, EOPS, DSPS and CalWORKS. If this provision is included in the final State budget, the District will have to absorb the costs in the unrestricted general fund. There are also proposed changes to the 50% law which states that 50% of most expenses must be spent in the classroom. Because the cost for counselors and librarians is not included in classroom expenses, faculty unions at the state level were pushing for change. However, AFT nixed a tentative agreement on a change to the law and it is still being debated.

CFO Blackwood said a final District budget will be brought to the Board at its September 10 meeting. It is not known when a final State budget will be approved.

CFO Blackwood said she has been informed by the State Controller that the State will audit the District's State mandated health fee elimination claim for the last five years, even though the District has not received money from the State for those years. The District is currently involved with other districts in a lawsuit against the State Controller concerning a previous audit in which the State disallowed the entire claim.

Trustee Miljanich asked who serves on the Budget Committee. CFO Blackwood said there is an administrator from each College, a representative from each union, a representative from each academic senate and each classified senate, and a student from each College.

Ulysses Guadamuz, President of CSEA Chapter 33, expressed disappointment with the "Compensation Adjustments" section on page 9 of the tentative budget, which he said infers that the District will not honor their contract. Mr. Guadamuz said CSEA received no communication from the District regarding the matter and said at no time has the union agreed to the State-approved COLA. Chancellor Galatolo said the District believes CSEA did agree to the State-approved COLA and there was a series of emails on how to interpret the agreement. Chancellor Galatolo suggested that Mr. Guadamuz talk with the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources.

After this discussion, the motion to approve the tentative budget carried, all members voting "Aye."

INFORMATION REPORTS

DISTRICT FINANCIAL SUMMARY FOR THE QUARTER ENDING MARCH 31, 2008 (08-6-3C)

Kathy Blackwood asked if there were questions or comments; there were none.

THIRD QUARTER REPORT OF AUXILIARY OPERATIONS, 2007-08 (08-6-4C)

Kathy Blackwood asked if there were questions or comments. Vice President Schwarz said she enjoys reading about the activities of the Associated Students at the Colleges and also appreciates the report on the Academic Senate.

DISTRICT ACADEMIC SENATE GOVERNING COUNCIL (DASGC) FINAL REPORT 2007-2008 (08-6-5C)

President Patty Dilko emphasized that one of the goals and values of the Academic Senate is to have full participation in shared governance and reported that faculty are highly engaged. Another goal is to promote collaboration with AFT and, to this end, conversations have been productive, including meetings with members of the Board of Trustees.

President Dilko highlighted some of the District Senate activities during 2007-08, including the Concurrent Enrollment Pilot Memorandum of Understanding; development of a new website with archives and current information; extensive work on the faculty ethics statement; conversations on the pros and cons of plus/minus grading; and initiation of a program review for the CTL's. President Dilko said she has had the honor of working with District staff, particularly Vice Chancellor Jing Luan, on strategic planning. President Dilko also said that members of the Academic Senate have participated in statewide conferences.

President Dilko said she asked the College Academic Senate Presidents to share the three most important issues they have worked on during the past year. President Dilko summarized their responses as presented in her written report.

President Dilko reported that she has been reelected to serve as District Academic Senate President for another year. Trustee Hausman thanked Ms. Dilko for her report and congratulated her on her reelection.

BOARD ACTIONS ON CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA (08-6-6C)

Barbara Christensen, Director of Community and Government Relations, said that following the Board's agreement to become subject to uniform construction cost accounting procedures, adjustments were made regarding which items are placed on the consent agenda. Changes also were made to reflect current practice. Chancellor Galatolo added that about a year ago, the Board asked how consent agenda items are determined. In response, this report provides a list of items that are placed on the consent agenda and those that are placed on the regular agenda.

Vice President Schwarz said she is concerned about change orders on projects, which are placed on the consent agenda if they are valued between the legal bid minimum and \$500,000, and are reported as part of the Warrants if they are under the legal bid minimum. President Schwarz said it can be difficult to keep track of the total cost of a project if there are multiple change orders on that project. She said it is also important that the Board be informed of the reason for a change order. Chancellor Galatolo suggested modifying board reports so that they state the original amount of the project and a cumulative total of change orders for the project; this modification would apply to reports for items on the consent agenda and regular agenda. Trustee Miljanich said that change orders do not stand out on the Warrants and asked if they might be set apart on the listing. Trustee Mandelkern suggested that cumulative amounts for projects also be listed on the Warrants. Chancellor Galatolo said these changes will be made and will be added to the procedures. After discussion about whether to change the dollar threshold defining where contracts requiring a bid and change orders are placed, the Board agreed that the procedure and process is more important and that it is not necessary to change the threshold. They also noted that any item can be removed from the consent agenda by a Board member who wishes to discuss it further.

STATEMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

Vice President Schwarz thanked Barbara Christensen for sending a copy of the photo of the College of San Mateo planetarium which is on the cover of the AT&T telephone book. Vice President Schwarz said she hopes Student Trustee Medrano Rosales feels welcome and said she looks forward to working with her.

Trustee Hausman enjoyed commencement at Cañada College and was impressed with the valedictorian and her story. Trustee Hausman also attended the Skyline Automotive Banquet and the ribbon cutting for the College of San Mateo athletic fields. A scholarship was awarded in Trustee Hausman's name and she received a touching thank you letter from the student who received it. The scholarship requires volunteerism and is community-oriented. Trustee Hausman also welcomed Student Trustee Medrano Rosales.

Trustee Mandelkern complimented President Claire on the commencement ceremony at College of San Mateo as well as the reception and dinner which followed.

President Holober enjoyed the enthusiastic commencement ceremony at Skyline. He also attended the Skyline Automotive Banquet and the ribbon cutting for the CSM athletic fields and appreciated the tribute to Coach Martinez.

COMMUNICATIONS

None

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION

The Board recessed to Closed Session at 8:20 p.m. The Board reconvened to Open Session at 9:55 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS TAKEN

Vice President Schwarz reported that, at the Closed Session just concluded, the Board considered the personnel item listed on the printed agenda and voted 5-0 to approve the action in Board Report No. 1-A.

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved by Vice President Schwarz and seconded by Trustee Hausman to adjourn the meeting in honor of Winifred Galatolo. The motion carried, all members voting "Aye." The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 p.m.

The next meeting of the Board will be a Study Session on July 9, 2008 at 6:00 p.m. in the District Board Room.

Submitted by Rop Galatolø Secretary

Approved and entered into the proceedings of the July 9, 2008 meeting.

Karon Schwar

Karen Schwarz Vice President-Clerk